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ISO/RTO COUNCIL

William J. Museler, Chairman
Ladies and Gentlemen:

Transmission Issues Subcommittee Survey
Reactive Power and Voltage Control Practices

The Planning Committee (PC) is tasked with the follow-up to NERC Blackout Recommendation 7a,
“The Planning Committee shall reevaluate within one year the effectiveness of the existing reactive
power and voltage control standards and how they are being implemented in practice in the ten NERC
regions. Based on this evaluation, the Planning Committee shall recommend revisions to standards or
process improvements to ensure voltage control and stability issues are adequately addressed.”

The PC assigned this follow-up activity to the Transmission Issues Subcommittee (TIS). TIS’s first
step in this evaluation will be to assemble the current reactive power and voltage control procedures
that each regional reliability council (region) follows. We request that each region respond to the
attached Transmission Issues Subcommittee Survey no later than November 5, 2004. Respondents are
urged to be as expansive as possible and to provide sufficient information or references to allow TIS to
gain a full understanding of all aspects of reactive power and voltage control planning in your region.
The requested information should be sent to the NERC office in Princeton, or electronically to John
Twitchell, staff support for TIS (john.twitchell@nerc.net). TIS will review and evaluate the current
regional practices, and report to and provide recommendations to the PC.

Prior to reporting to the PC, TIS may also ask representative(s) from each region to meet with them to
further clarify and explain the region’s practices and standards. This review will be scheduled, if
necessary, after TIS has had an opportunity to review the survey responses. \We appreciate your
cooperation in assisting the PC and TIS in addressing an important blackout related follow-up issue.
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If you have any questions, please feel free to consult with the TIS member who represents your region.
A TIS roster is attached for your reference.

Sincerely,

Chairman

NERC Planning Committee
JRT:an
Attachments

cc: Planning Committee
Technical Steering Committee
Transmission Issues Subcommittee



TRANSMISSION ISSUES SUBCOMMITTEE SURVEY

REACTIVE POWER AND VOLTAGE CONTROL PRACTICES

(September 24, 2004)

One of the tasks assigned to the Transmission Issues Subcommittee (TIS) is NERC Blackout
Recommendation 7a:

“Recommendation 7a - Evaluate Reactive Power and Voltage Control Practices: The
Planning Committee shall reevaluate within one year the effectiveness of the existing
reactive power and voltage control standards and how they are being implemented in
practice in the ten NERC regions. Based on this evaluation, the Planning Committee
shall recommend revisions to standards or process improvements to ensure voltage
control and stability issues are adequately addressed.”

In order to “reevaluate” the “effectiveness” of the existing planning practices in the ten NERC
regions, it is necessary to first understand what the existing planning practices are and how they
are implemented. The information requested below from the regions is intended to provide such
understanding. Based on the information received, standards/criteria/policies/processes/
procedures will be identified, evaluated and recommended so as to ensure voltage control and
voltage stability issues are adequately addressed.

Information provided in response to this survey is to be coordinated and assembled by the
regions.

Responses to the information requested below are to be provided to the NERC office, or
electronically to John Twitchell (john.twitchell@nerc.net) no later than November 5, 2004.

Information Request:

1. Please provide any regional standards/criteria/policies/processes/procedures that are
specific to voltage control and reactive power planning assessments. The region should
also survey the ISOs/RTOs and member transmission providers/owners in their respective
region for standards/criteria/policies/processes/procedures specific to their system, and
include such information if it substantially differs or supplements that of the region. The
response should address the following specific items:

a. Table 1 of NERC Planning Standard 1.A requires evaluation of Categories A, B, and C
contingencies to be within applicable ratings and applicable voltage limits. Describe the
methodologies used for determining these applicable voltage limits, e.g. PV, QV, or
other analysis;

b. Whether in planning assessments, voltage control or reactive power system limitations
are determined on a region- or ISO/RTO-wide basis, for specific load/generation
pockets, and/or by transmission provider/owner, and what factor(s) are used to make
such determination:;



Transmission Issues Subcommittee Survey
Reactive Power and Voltage Control Practices (contd)

c. Whether sensitivities of the planning assessments are performed assuming one or more
generation/transmission facilities are unavailable, and/or different load levels, and the
general criteria used for determining the sensitivities to be assessed;

d. The type(s) of load model used in the planning assessments specific to voltage control
and reactive power limitations (i.e., constant power, constant impedance etc.);

e. The basis and verification process used for establishing load power factor in the system
models;

f. The time frames modeled in the planning assessments specific to voltage control and
reactive power limitations (e.g., short-term dynamics, mid-term 3—60 seconds, load flow)
and generally, how the results of the time frame(s) studied are used in the assessment;

g. The periodicity and horizon of the assessments specific to voltage control and reactive
power planning;

h. How reactive power resources are planned to ensure an appropriate balance between
static and dynamic characteristics and that the resources are appropriately distributed;
and

i. What generation equipment testing is performed to verify that data submitted for steady
state and dynamics modeling in planning (one year or more) and operating studies (less
than one year) are consistent with the actual physical characteristics of the equipment.
This data includes, but is not limited to, gross and net generator MW dependable
capability, gross and net reactive power capability, voltage regulator controls,
speed/load governor controls, and excitation systems.

2. Please provide any additional information as well as other types of planning assessments
performed in the region and considered useful to ensure that voltage control and stability
issues are adequately addressed.

3. Does your Region have undervoltage load shedding programs?



Transmission Issues Subcommittee (tis-pc@nerc.com)

Kenneth A. Donohoo (Vice Chairman)

Manager of System Planning
Transmission Services

Electric Reliability Council of Texas

2705 West Lake Drive
Taylor, TX 76574-2136

Ph: 512-248-3003

Fax: 512-248-6560

Em: kdonohoo@ercot.com

Bernard M. Pasternack (ECAR)
Director — Transmission Planning
American Electric Power

700 Morrison Road

Gahanna, OH 43230-8250

Ph: 614-552-1600

Fx: 614-552-1676

Em: bmpasternack@aep.com

(ERCOT) — TBN

Hector Sanchez (FRCC)
Supervisor, Bulk Transmission
Florida Power & Light Company
4200 W. Flagler Street, TSP/LFO
Miami, FL 33134

Ph:  305-442-5062

Fx:  305-442-5790

Em: hector_sanchez@fpl.com

William Whitehead (MAAC)

General Manager, Transmission and

Interconnection Planning
PJM Interconnection, L.L.C.
955 Jefferson Avenue
Valley Forge Corporate Center
Norristown, PA 19403-2497
Ph: 610-666-4561
Fx: 610-666-2296
Em: whitew@pjm.com

(September 28, 2004)

Kirit S. Shah (Chairman)
Supervising Engineer
Transmission & Interconnections
Ameren

P.O. Box 66149

St. Louis, MO 63166-6149

Ph: 314-554-3542

Fx: 314-554-3260

Em: kshah@ameren.com

Thomas Kay (MAIN)

Manager, Transmission Reinforcement Planning

Exelon Energy Delivery
Two Lincoln Center

Oak Brook, IL 60181-4260
Ph: 630-437-2758

Fx: 630-437-2309

Em: thomas.kay@exeloncorp.com

Lloyd Linke (MAPP)
Operations Manager

Western Area Power Administration

P.O. Box 790

Watertown, SD 57201-0790
Ph:  605-882-7500

Fx:  605-882-7409

Em: lloyd@wapa.gov

Larry Eng (NPCC)
Consulting Engineer
National Grid

1125 Broadway
Albany, NY 12204-2505
Ph: 518-433-3938

Fx: -

Em: larry.eng@us.ngrid.com

R. Douglas Powell (SERC)

Manager, Technical System Planning

Entergy Corporation

P.O. Box 61000

New Orleans, LA 70161

Ph: 504-310-5810

Fx: 504-310-5898

Em: rpowell@entergy.com

Jay Caspary (SPP)
Manager of Planning
Southwest Power Pool

415 N. McKinley Street, Suite 800

Little Rock, AR 72205
Ph: 501-614-3220

Fx: 501-666-0376
Em: jcaspary@spp.org



Transmission Issues Subcommittee (cont)

Sandra L. Johnson (WECC)

Manager, Transmission Reliability and
Assessment-Colorado

Xcel Energy

550 15th Street, Suite 700

Denver, CO 80202-4256

Ph: 303-571-7095

Fx: 303-571-7877

Em: sandra.l.johnson@xcelenergy.com

Yury Tsimberg (Canada)
Transmission Approvals

Hydro One Networks, Inc.

483 Bay Street, TCT15N-A6
Toronto, Ontario M5G 2P5

Ph: 416-345-5867

Fx: 416-345-5188

Em: yury.tsimberg@hydroone.com

Jeffrey R. Webb (ISO/RTO)
Director of Planning

Midwest ISO

701 City Center Drive
Carmel, IN 46032

Ph: 317-249-5412

Fx: 317-249-5910

Em: jwebb@midwestiso.org

W. Perry Stowe (IOU)

Director Transmission Planning
Southern Company Services, Inc.
PO Box 2641, Bin 13N-8183
Birmingham, AL 35291-8183

Ph: 205-257-6138

Fx: 205-257-1040

Em: wpstowe@southernco.com

Marvin J. Landauer (Federal)

Principal Engineer for Network Development

Bonneville Power Administration
905 NE 11th Avenue, Mail Stop R-3
Portland, OR 97208-3621

Ph: 503-230-4105

Fx: 503-230-3270

Em: mjlandauer@bpa.gov

Samuel T. Stryker (TDU)
Engineering Manager

Fayetteville Public Works Commission
955 Old Wilmington Road
Fayetteville, NC 28301

Ph: 910-223-4517

Fx: 910-323-2900

Em: sam.stryker@faypwc.com

(State/Municipal) — TBN
(Cooperative) — TBN

Scott M. Helyer (IPP)

Director, Transmission

Tenaska, Inc.

1701 East Lamar Boulevard, Suite 100
Arlington, TX 76006

Ph: 817-462-1512

Fx: 817-462-1510

Em: shelyer@tnsk.com

(Power Marketer) — TBN
(Customer) — TBN

(OC Liaison) — TBN
(MC Liaison) — TBN

Paul McCurley (NRECA Observer)

Manager, Power Supply

National Rural Electric Cooperative Association
4301 Wilson Boulevard

Arlington, VA 22203-1860

Ph: 703-907-5867

Fx: 703-907-5517

Em: paul.mccurley@nreca.coop

George Bowden (Canada-Alternate)
Director Special Projects

AltaLink Management Ltd.

P.O. Box 20, Station M

1035 - 7th Avenue, S.W.

Calgary, Alberta T2P 2G9

Ph: 403-267-2116

Fx: 403-267-3444

Em: george.bowden@altalink.ca

Steve Corey (ISO/RTO-Alternate)
Manager, Transmission Planning
New York ISO

5172 Western Turnpike

Altamont, NY 12009

Ph: 518-356-6134

Fx: 518-356-6208

Em: scorey@nyiso.com

John R. Twitchell (NERC Staff)
Manager-Planning

North American Electric Reliability Council
116-390 Village Boulevard

Princeton, NJ 08540

Ph: 609-452-8060

Fx:  609-452-9550

Em: john.twitchell@nerc.net



